
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH      
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
Web:  www.surfsidebeach.org 
 (843) 913-6111     (843) 238-5432 
  

 
 
 
 

 
 

SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  
Regular MEETING AGENDA 

Council chambers 
 Tuesday, October 8, 2013  6:30 p.m. 

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Douglas F. Samples 
 
 2.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Pastor Scott Wachter, Surfside 
  United Methodist Church    
 

 3.   AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
 4.   MINUTES APPROVAL - Regular Meeting  

 
 5.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items Only. (3-minutes per speaker) 
 
   6.   COMMUNICATIONS 
  A.   Proclamation 13-87 October 2013 Fire Prevention Month  
  B.   Department Reports 
   i.   Fire  
   ii.   Planning, Building & Zoning  
   iii.  Police  
  C.   Administrator’s Report  - Update on Current Events 
    
 7.   BUSINESS 
  A.   Second Reading of Ordinances 
   i.   #13-0761 to amend §7-26 to delete $15 price for Moby cart, Director Adair.  
   ii.   #13-0762 to amend FY2012-2013 Municipal Budget, Director King. 
  B. First Readings of Ordinances  
   i.   #13-0763 to amend §5-18 Appointment of Poll Workers, Administrator Fellner 
   ii.   #13-0764 to amend §§13-52, 13-57,13-60 & 13-61 Planning, Building and Zoning Fees,  
    Director Morris 
   iii.   #13-0765 to accept Harbor Lights Roads into Town System, Director Morris 
  C.   Budget Calendar FY2014-2015, Amended and draft Budget Agenda 
 
 8.   DISCUSSION – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town Council. 
  Fire Department Fee Schedule, Administrator Fellner, Chief Cimini 
 
   9.   PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments. (5-minutes per speaker) 
 
 10.   COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
 11.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE:  Town Council Workshop, Tuesday, October 22, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
to meet with the Stormwater Committee to hear a presentation by Dr. Susan Libes, and 
others, on the town’s stormwater retention ponds. The public is welcomed to attend. 



 

Page 1 of 15 
 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  2 
  SEPTEMBER 24, 2013 6:30 P.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 
 5 
 6 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.
 8 

   7 

 Mayor Samples called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore 9 
Mabry, and Councilmembers Dodge, Johnson, Kohlmann, Smith, and Stevens were in attendance.  A 10 
quorum was present.  Others present:  Town Administrator Fellner; Finance Director King; Public Works 11 
Director Adair; Recreation Supervisor Ellis, and Town Clerk Herrmann.    12 
 13 
 2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
 15 

   14 

 Pastor Oakie Landers from Pine Drive Gospel Church gave the invocation.  Mayor Samples lead 16 
the Pledge. 17 
 18 
 3.  
 20 

AGENDA APPROVAL. 19 

 Mr. Smith moved to approve the agenda.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION 21 
CARRIED. 22 
 23 
 4.  
 25 

MINUTES APPROVAL. 24 

 Ms. Dodge moved to approve the minutes of the September 10, 2013 meeting as submitted.  Mr. 26 
Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 27 
 28 
 5.  
  30 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – Agenda Items (3 minutes.) 29 

 There were no public comments on agenda items. 31 
 32 
 6.  
 34 

COMMUNICATIONS. 33 

 A.  Department Reports. 35 
 36 
 i.  Finance.   37 
 38 
 Ms. King presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  Business and permit fees 39 
exceed last year by $7,000. There were 26 new business license accounts opened in August; 10 new 40 
rentals, 8 contractors, and 5 new local businesses.  Three businesses located outside the town obtained 41 
licenses to work here.  Over all general fund revenue and expenses exceed the prior year due to the 42 
parking revenues and expenses being recorded in the general fund this year.  In her opinion, it was very 43 
good to deposit the parking revenue in the general fund.  Year-to-date revenue was $236,904; expenses 44 
so far were $716,405, so expenses exceeded revenue by $481,680.  But that only reflects two months of 45 
revenue.  Property taxes will start being paid in November; the county mails the bills on October 31st.  No 46 
local revenue or other governmental funds from the state were received.  Those monies are paid 47 
quarterly, except for Grand Strand Water and Sewer Authority, which is paid monthly.  The cash is sent 48 
the month following the end of the quarter.  Lanier Parking generated $79,564 for the general fund; 49 
$12,578 was from by citations.  During August in accommodations and special revenue funds more 50 
money was paid out than received, because those revenues are received quarterly.  There were two 51 
specials events, the Guy Daniels Memorial Surf Off and the beach luau.  Hospitality funds received 52 
$150,329 during August, which was generated by visitors during the month of July.  That amount is better 53 
than last year.  Because property taxes are not being received yet and money was being spent on some 54 
stormwater projects, the capital projects expenses exceed revenue by $18,256.  The pier fund brought in 55 
$134,394 year-to-date, which is more than last year.  The net year-to-date for the pier fund is $125,538 to 56 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 15 
 

the good versus $108,764 last year.  Due to the rate increase and the summer service, the sanitation 57 
fund brought in $279,039 in fees; the net for that fund is $149,762.  The parking report shows the total 58 
revenue received from Lanier in addition to what the town pays to Lanier.  The schedules also 59 
differentiate what revenue is generated for the general fund and pier fund.   60 
 61 
 Mr. Smith asked if the parking report breakout of the general and pier funds was based on the 62 
80:20 split.  Ms. King said the report shows the actual money collected at the pier according to Lanier.  63 
Mr. Smith asked if it was the pier parking lot.  Ms. King said yes, the pier parking lot.  The expenses were 64 
split 80:20.  At the end of the season, the expenses will be reevaluated to determine whether a different 65 
formula should be used.  The 80:20 split was consistent with past practices and was a starting point until 66 
some actual data could be obtained.  Ms. King believed the percentages were closer to 70:30, but, again, 67 
that would be evaluated at the end of the season.  Mr. Smith thanked Ms. King for adding the parking 68 
expenses column and asked why $2,747 was spent in August compared to $1,042 spent in July.  Ms. 69 
King said two golf carts had to be repaired at a cost of about $1,200 so that Lanier could continue to use 70 
them, and merchant fees increase proportionately to meter revenue.  Mr. Smith said expenses also 71 
include merchant fee, plus other associated expenses.  Ms. King said yes.  Mr. Smith referred to the pier 72 
fund and asked if another payment would be received from the restaurant lease.  Ms. King believed there 73 
were three payments that were scheduled in July, August, and September.   74 
 75 
 Mayor Samples asked if that schedule was for both tenants.  Ms. King said she would find out 76 
and let the council know.   77 
 78 
 Ms. Kohlmann referred to general funds public works, and asked why expenditures this year were 79 
$18,191 compared to $10,484 last year.   80 
 81 
 Mayor Samples asked if any lake maintenance cost was transferred to the general fund out of 82 
capital projects.  Ms. King said that money was from hospitality funds; expenses for the parks last year 83 
were in hospitality funds, and now they are in general funds where they belong.  That would explain part 84 
of the increase, but there is possibly something else that increased the amount.  Ms. King would check 85 
and let the council know.                86 
 87 
 Mr. Stevens referred to the pier enterprise fund and said meter income is $12,594 and the August 88 
2012 column states $8,204.  He recalled that that was the month that the town made $8. 89 
 90 
 Ms. Kohlmann said September 2012 was the month $8 was made. 91 
 92 
 Mayor Samples asked Mr. Stevens for his point. 93 
 94 
 Mr. Stevens wondered why the report showed $8,000 for August, because he recalled that only 95 
$8 was made at the pier.  Sanitation revenue increased to $279,039 compared to $234,668; he asked if 96 
that was because of the $3.75 increase to the taxpayers of the town.  Ms. King said the commercial 97 
service and winter service fees were also increased.    98 
 99 
 ii. Recreation 100 
 101 
 Ms. Ellis presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  The Recreation/Special Events 102 
Committee was scheduled to meet Wednesday, September 18th at 10:00 a.m.  The meeting was 103 
cancelled; only two of the five members attended. The next meeting is scheduled Wednesday, October 104 
16th at 10:00 a.m. at the Fire Department.  Details were being finalized on the upcoming Family Festival 105 
being held on Saturday, October 5th.  Entertainment includes the Josh Brannon Band and the Tim Clark 106 
Band.  Fifteen minute demonstrations were scheduled by Marla’s School of Dance; Elite Dance Centre; 107 
Coastal Carolina University Dance Team; a Mad Science show, and a hula show. The town will have a 108 
tent with town merchandise for sale, as well as 50th Anniversary merchandise.  There will be a petting zoo 109 
and rock climbing wall.  The police department will have a dunking booth with the proceeds being 110 
donated to Special Olympics.  The town will conduct its annual Health Fair in conjunction with 111 
Georgetown Hospital on Friday, October 11th at the Dick M. Johnson Civic Center.  Employee hours are 112 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 15 
 

7:00 a.m. to 8:30 a.m. The public is invited to participate from 8:30 a.m. to 10:30 a.m.  Information on 113 
tests and services being offered are available on the website or at the front desk in town hall.  Flu shots 114 
will also be available.  According to Dan Flood, acting president of the Surfside Beach Youth Sports 115 
Association, they are currently running Coach Pitch and Machine Pitch games Monday through Thursday 116 
on Field #2 at Huckabee Complex.  The Association held its first annual meeting on September 3rd.  117 
According to Mr. Flood, attendance was extremely poor.  They are in the process of updating their 118 
website for the upcoming spring season.  The Beach Sweep was Saturday, September 21st.  About 185 119 
people participated.  Karate World brought every child that takes classes along with at least one parent, 120 
as Karate World requires its student to do community projects.  Ms. Ellis gave a very big ‘thank you’ to 121 
Karate World for participating every single year.  Highlights of the Beach Sweep collection include 1,533 122 
cigarette butts; men’s underwear; 233 food wrappers; 209 fireworks; 209 bottle caps, and many other 123 
items.  Upcoming events include the Skyhoundz Disc Contest, Saturday, September 28th beginning at 124 
10:00 a.m. at Martin Field; the Family Festival on Saturday, October 5th, 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on 125 
Surfside Drive; Health Fair on Friday, October 11th, 7:00 a.m. to 10:30 a.m. at the Civic Center;  Nathan 126 
Black 5K Race on Saturday, October 26th, beginning at 8:00 a.m. at the Surfside Pier, and the Farmers 127 
Market continues on Tuesdays from 10 a.m. to 3 p.m. through October 29th.  Sunday Serenades ended 128 
and had a good season.   129 
 130 
 Mr. Smith asked again for the number of cigarette butts.  Ms. Ellis said 1,533 based on the tally 131 
cards turned in; not everyone turned in a card.  Mr. Smith said if all those people received a ticket it would 132 
generate about $25,000 for the town.  Maybe the police force needed to be a little tougher enforcing that 133 
code.  In regard to sports tourism, Mr. Smith asked if people use the town’s ball fields during the winter, 134 
and whether that could be classified sports tourism.  That term is frequently heard in Myrtle Beach and 135 
North Myrtle Beach.  He asked if anything was being done in that arena; the town has many events, but 136 
was anything being done to promote the town’s ball fields for tournaments, and so forth.  Ms. Ellis said 137 
the town used to host 15 or 20 tournaments a year; but now that function was handled by the Youth 138 
Sports Association.  To her knowledge, there have been no tournaments so far this year.  Mr. Smith 139 
asked if the Youth Association had to be contacted to use the fields.  Ms. Ellis said yes.   140 
 141 
 Mr. Stevens concurred with some of the information Mr. Smith talked about.  Mr. Stevens said in 142 
the past, he personally was involved with a soccer team in Mount Pleasant, and according to reports, the 143 
tournaments generated over $350,000 for the city in revenue, hotels, and restaurants and so on, not 144 
including other revenue (**) by the parks, recreation and tourism.  Mr. Stevens asked how many booths 145 
were set up for the Family Festival, and if any were still available.  Ms. Ellis said there were a few 146 
available out of the 142.  Over 100 vendors had reserved booths; some reserved two spaces.  She 147 
expected at least the same number of vendors as last year.   148 
 149 
 Mr. Johnson asked why the End of Summer Celebration was cancelled.  Ms. Ellis said the beach 150 
luau was added to take its place, and the celebration last summer was not successful.  The End of 151 
Summer Celebration cost about $5,000 and only about 200 people attended.    152 
 153 
 Ms. Kohlmann said for the record, “It wasn’t Beth Kohlmann that did away with the End of 154 
Summer Celebration.  I want to make that perfectly clear.” 155 
 156 
 iii.  Public Works. 157 
 158 
 Mr. Adair presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  Residential sanitation service 159 
had seven carts repaired and three were replaced.  Eight carts were removed from locations no longer 160 
experiencing overflow.  Commercial service routes continue to be updated based on business needs.  161 
One account increased service; 14 accounts reduced service days.  The supervisor explained 162 
commercial collection schedules to two new businesses:  Lazer's Pizza and Coastal Sign Service.  Two 163 
accounts, Original Benjamin's and Wild Water and Wheels have closed for the season.  Nine recycling 164 
carts were delivered to town residents upon request.   The department received a payment of $374.40 165 
from Allen's Scrap Metal for scrap metal recycling materials collected in July and August.   Three times a 166 
week summer sanitation service and Sunday commercial dumpster service ended on Sunday, September 167 
8th.  Winter one time a week roll-out of Moby carts and recycle carts in the R-3/C-3 districts began on 168 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 4 of 15 
 

September 11th and will continue until May 8th, 2014.  The next household hazardous/e-waste drop off 169 
event will take place at Public Works from Friday, September 27th through Sunday, September 29th from 170 
9 a.m. to 1 p.m.  Crews were raking the beach and swash outlets were being dug out twice a week to 171 
ensure proper water flow, weather permitting.  Beach cans were being serviced twice a week, and on 172 
weekends, weather permitting.  The volleyball poles at 1st Avenue South were removed for the season.  173 
Director Adair reported that he attended the SCASM (South Carolina Association of Stormwater 174 
Managers) conference recently held in Columbia.  On October 22nd he will attend the DHEC (South 175 
Carolina Department of Health and Environment Control) Solid Waste and Recycling conference in 176 
Columbia.  Mr. Adair was asked to speak at the conference about coastal recycling and the town’s beach 177 
recycling programs.  Crews were completing repairs and maintenance along Surfside Drive in preparation 178 
for the Family Festival.  Renovations and beautification work started on the outfall area of Magnolia Lake 179 
at 16th Avenue North.  Quotes were being obtained to replace the welcome sign at Melody Lane that was 180 
destroyed in an auto accident.  Some additional golf cart parking was created at the 7th Avenue South 181 
Beach access, in addition to 1st Avenue North and 2nd Avenue South.  Five reports were sent to Santee 182 
Cooper identifying street lights that were not functioning properly.  The grounds division removed two 183 
trees posing safety concerns at All Children’s Park.  Replacement of the outfield fence at Huckabee field 184 
#2 was completed (under budget.) Crews were completing repairs and maintenance, as well as installing 185 
mulch, in Fuller Park in preparation for the Family Festival being held on October 5th.  Extra watering was 186 
being done on all town plantings due to lack of rain.  From August 21st through September 18th, the fleet 187 
maintenance mechanic completed 55 repairs on town vehicles and equipment; 4 vehicles had flats 188 
repaired; 4 vehicles had tires replaced; 30 other vehicles had preventive maintenance performed.  The 189 
facilities crew repainted all beach access posts blue and white.  Maintenance at the pier included 190 
brackets installation on the light poles to allow the Keep Surfside Beach Beautiful committee to hang 191 
flower baskets on them.  The bid opening for pier parking lot improvements was held on Friday, 192 
September 20th; the bid was being reviewed.  A meeting was held with supervisors where they discussed 193 
not leaving cans tipped at the empty residences, and not leaving engines running when they were out of 194 
the trucks.   195 
 196 
 Mr. Smith liked the household hazardous waste drop off, but it happened that he was out of town 197 
every time the event occurred.  He asked if could drop off his items on Thursday.  Mr. Adair said 198 
absolutely.  Mr. Smith asked if Mr. Adair would change the drop off days to include Thursday, just in case 199 
he was out of town for the weekend again.   200 
 201 
 Ms. Kohlmann asked if the weekly rollout was in effect and whether residents would be notified of 202 
the opt-out program as was done in the past.  She did not believe notices were sent now.  Mr. Adair said 203 
the ordinance stipulates that it was the citizen’s responsibility to contact public works to opt out.  To his 204 
recollection, notices had not been sent.  Ms. Kohlmann thought it would be the same way it was done 205 
before, because she did not believe that it stated the ordinance before that the town was required to notify 206 
them; she thought they should be notified, because it was the right thing to do.  Ms. Kohlmann asked how 207 
often the street sweeper was used.  Mr. Adair said it was used Mondays and Fridays, weather permitting.  208 
The town was split into four segments; staff has four factory-trained operators, and it was going very well.  209 
The equipment was holding up well, also.   210 
 211 
 Mayor Samples asked if trash pickups were done on Wednesdays in the R-3 district at the beach.  212 
Mr. Adair said yes, that is the one day roll out schedule.  Mayor Samples asked what the progress was on 213 
the 3rd Avenue South channel.  Mr. Adair said it was surveyed and engineers were currently preparing a 214 
bid specification package, which he hoped to receive in October.  Mayor Samples asked about the bids 215 
for the pier parking lot.  Mr. Adair said there was only one bid submitted, although four companies 216 
showed up for the pre-bid conference.  One bid was received late, and it was considered nonresponsive.  217 
The sole bidder was informed that his bid would be reviewed and his check references, but the town 218 
reserved the right to reject the bid and possibly re-bid the job.  Mayor Samples asked how long the bid 219 
was published.  Mr. Adair said about three and a half weeks.  Mayor Samples asked if it was published in 220 
South Carolina Business Opportunities (SCBO), and how many times it was published.  Mr. Adair said 221 
yes, it was put in for the first cycle.  Mayor Samples said unless SCBO was notified the bid should be 222 
published multiple times, it would only publish once.  SCBO is published three times a week.  Mr. Adair 223 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 5 of 15 
 

said Palmetto Corp. was at the pre-bid conference, but chose not to submit a bid.  Boggs Paving was 224 
advised, but did not show up.      225 
 226 
 B.  Administrator’s Report – Update on Current Events, Administrator Fellner. 227 
 228 
 Ms. Fellner reported that since 2007, the town has used Iron Mountain for storage of archival 229 
documents.  Staff will re-inventory the contents of the 79 boxes stored there.  She asked Iron Mountain to 230 
return all boxes to the town.  Over the next few months the documents will be reviewed and originals will 231 
be scanned for digital storage.  Ms. Fellner said the contract was cancelled, which saves the town 232 
approximately $2,000 a year.  A workshop will be held just before the regular meeting on October 22nd at 233 
5:00 p.m. regarding what is in the town retention ponds, and their suitability for recreational use.  Drs. 234 
Libes and Smith from Coastal Carolina University will speak, and a statement will be presented from Ben 235 
Powell, a natural resources agent with Clemson Extension Service.  The stormwater committee was 236 
invited to attend, as well as the public.  A meeting is scheduled October 3rd at 5:30 p.m. regarding the 237 
comprehensive plan.  All department directors will attend.  Staff was asked to consider the 238 
comprehensive plan as the 5-year business plan for the town, and to tie all initiatives to it.  She asked that 239 
matters in conflict with the comprehensive plan not be brought forward, except when she had been so 240 
directed by Town Council.  The discount combo for the Yaupon parking lot has begun and will run until 241 
October 31st.  This discount enables those that purchase a daily fishing license to park all day for $5 only 242 
in the Yaupon parking lot.  An example of the flyer was distributed to council for information.  The 243 
program was managed through a coupon validation code programmed into the Yaupon lot pay station.  244 
This program was used for the past two years and has worked very well bringing in more fishing revenue.  245 
The program was good for the town and for Pier Outfitters.  Review work had begun on the personnel 246 
manual and will continue through the winter.  A list of needed changes in accordance with the MASC 247 
(Municipal Association of South Carolina) updated documentation was being compiled.  A revised version 248 
will be presented to Town Council after review by the labor attorney, and hopefully, on day two of the 249 
budget retreat.     250 
 251 
 Mr. Johnson asked who would scan the archival documents.  Ms. Fellner said probably a 252 
volunteer.  Mr. Johnson was concerned that sensitive information might be misused.  Ms. Fellner said the 253 
information was public.  She said to be very honest, we have found that when boxes were retrieved from 254 
Iron Mountain, many of them were half full with information that was not required to be retained.  The 255 
town pays $158 a month just for the flat storage fee.  She reiterated that they need to look at the contents 256 
of the boxes, and explained that the descriptors on the boxes were insufficient and inaccurate.  It was 257 
hard to determine which box should be retrieved and 10 or 12 boxes might have to be retrieved to locate 258 
the needed documents.  Mr. Johnson was concerned with potential identity theft, social security numbers, 259 
and that type of information.  From what Ms. Fellner was saying was that the documents would be 260 
reviewed before they were scanned.  Ms. Fellner said yes; there are two sets of documents.  There first 261 
set pertains to the clerk’s duties; she would review those boxes.  The second set pertains to the finance 262 
director’s duties; she would review those boxes.  The documents will be reviewed to ascertain whether 263 
they are archival, and then a catalog would be created for each department.  A representative was 264 
coming to the last staff meeting in October to discuss document management, and the finance director 265 
was also going to Greenville to look at document management that would input directly into CSI 266 
accounting software, which would eliminate this problem.  Mr. Johnson said for the most part, these were 267 
not personnel documents.  Ms. Fellner said that was correct.   268 
 269 
 Mayor Samples asked how many years worth of documents were stored at Iron Mountain.  Ms. 270 
Fellner said items have been stored there since 2007, but she had no idea what was in the storage 271 
boxes.  There may be very old documents, but it was very hard to tell based on the descriptors.  Mayor 272 
Samples said without going through them.  Ms. Fellner said yes.   273 
 274 
 7.  
 276 

BUSINESS 275 

 A.  First Readings of Ordinances   277 
 278 
 i.  #13-0761 to amend §7-26 to delete 415 price for Moby cart, Director Adair. 279 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 6 of 15 
 

 280 
 Mr. Adair presented the consideration paper, a copy of which was on file, and explained that the 281 
sanitation ordinance was recently reviewed as a whole.  Since then, it came to his attention that a 282 
reference to the old fee was stated in Section 7-26.  The amendment would eliminate the dollar amount 283 
and simply state that additional Moby carts could be obtained for an additional fee.  Fees were spelled out 284 
very clearly in Section 7-12.   285 
 286 
 Mr. Smith moved to adopt first reading of Ordinance #13-0761 to amend Section 7-26.  Ms. 287 
Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 288 
 289 
 ii.  #13-0762 to amend FY2012-2013 Municipal Budget, Director King. 290 
 291 
 Ms. King presented the consideration paper, a copy of which is on file.  She explained that the 292 
amendments were basically “clean-up” so that the financial statements could be finalized for the audit, 293 
which she expected to be completed soon.  Town Council has to approve all expenditures, but not 294 
revenue.  The general fund was changed to remove the SCDOT (South Carolina Department of 295 
Transportation) road project.  The fire department budget adjustment was for unbudgeted personnel costs 296 
and acquisition of a weather station needed for hurricane season.  The decrease to general fund 297 
expenditures was $750,570, making the total expenditures $6,366,130.  The accommodations tax fund 298 
received approximately $165,000 more in revenue than budgeted.  The increase in revenue requires the 299 
town to pay additional percentages to the Myrtle Beach Chamber of Commerce and to the general fund.  300 
The amount to the Chamber increased by $49,475; the general fund increased by $8,250, making the 301 
total increase $57,725, which brings the total accommodations tax expenditures to $594,809.  The pier 302 
fund expenses had to be adjusted for depreciation; interest on the loan to the general fund, and the water 303 
bills for the bathrooms that exceeded budget expectations.  The auditors also recomputed several items 304 
that were capitalized on the pier.  Those items increase pier expenditures by $11,340 for a total of 305 
$178,033.  Supplies to maintain the stormwater system purchased from the capital projects fund was 306 
exceeded by $4,625, making total expenditures $58,000.   307 
 308 
 Mr. Smith said the SCDOT was $780,000 and he knew that maybe $20,000 of that amount would 309 
not be refunded.  He asked if the amendment should reflect what would actually be received.  Ms. King 310 
said that was considered, but the professional/contractual services budget has a sufficient balance to 311 
cover that $20,000.  312 
 313 
 Ms. Kohlmann referred to the general fund operating expenditures of $26,205 for fire department 314 
additional expenses, and asked if there was any one specific item, because the description “retirements, 315 
medical leave, and turnover” seemed very generic.  Ms. King explained that salaries had to be paid, 316 
because people were on medical leave, and other people had to be paid to work during the absences.  317 
Staff that left had to be paid their accrued PTO (paid time off.)  Ms. Kohlmann asked if she could see 318 
details later.  Ms. King said PTO was added to the salary expense line.  Overtime might be available, she 319 
would have to check.  She believed overtime was under budget, but salaries were over budget so the two 320 
amounts were netted.    321 
          322 
 Mr. Stevens referred to accommodations tax and asked if the $8,250 amount was revenue or 323 
expenditures.  Ms. King explained that the accommodations fund had to pay it to the general fund, so it 324 
was an expense to the accommodations fund.  Mr. Stevens referred to the capital projects fund grounds 325 
department and street drainage, and asked which lakes the supplies were purchased for.  Ms. King said 326 
those were supplies for all the maintenance on the lakes and the stormwater projects.   327 
 328 
 Ms. Kohlmann asked if a motion was in order to suspend rules for discussion.  Mayor Samples 329 
said this was clarification; not discussion. 330 
 331 
 Mayor Samples referred to Mr. Stevens question about the $8,250 that comes from 332 
accommodations tax and is transferred to the general fund, and said state law stipulates that 5-percent of 333 
the accommodations tax revenue the town collects goes to the general fund.  Regarding Ms. Kohlmann’s 334 
question about the fire department salaries, Mayor Samples said PTO was one of the issues that this 335 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 7 of 15 
 

council had to deal with.  The administrator, he, and others had discussed PTO, which has been used for 336 
the past several years.  The sick leave and annual leave (vacation time) used to be separated.  Under a 337 
previous administration, and previous administrator, the two were combined.  Mayor Samples said he did 338 
not support PTO then, and he did not support it now.  PTO is a long-term growing liability for the town, 339 
and they were going to have to do something about it.  He wanted everyone to understand, because 340 
moving forward it affects the town’s financial health.   341 
 342 
 Mr. Stevens said if what Mayor Samples said was true, he asked whether council should direct 343 
the administrator to change the policy.   344 
 345 
 Mayor Samples said the administrator was preparing the information for council now.  There was 346 
a lot involved, because it affects each and every employee, their benefits, and all the pay grades.  He 347 
asked Ms. Fellner when she thought the information might be ready.  Ms. Fellner said she planned to 348 
present the information to the finance committee in November.          349 
 350 
 Mr. Smith moved to adopt first reading of Ordinance #13-0762 to amend Fiscal Year 2012-2013 351 
Budget.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 352 
  353 
 B.  Huckabee Complex, Administrator Fellner. 354 
 355 
 Ms. Fellner said at the last meeting Town Council asked her to determine the options of land 356 
availability at Huckabee Complex for construction of a new senior center by Horry County.  Since that 357 
time, Amy Blinson of SCPRT (South Carolina Parks, Recreation and Tourism) had informed her that the 358 
entire 10 acre complex was subject to the land use restriction as recorded in Horry County Deed Book 359 
885, page 567, and SCPRT would not release a portion of the property, because it was not large enough 360 
to do so.  The only option would be for the town to do a land conversion, which would be costly and time 361 
consuming.  Therefore, Ms. Fellner said since the entire complex is subject to the land restriction in 362 
perpetuity, and the expenditure to purchase land to do a conversation was not budgeted, her 363 
recommendation was to not move forward.   364 
 365 
 Mr. Smith moved to suspend rules to allow discussion.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  366 
MOTION CARRIED. 367 
 368 
 Mayor Samples had spoken with several members, and he thought there was a growing 369 
consensus that this was more appropriately a county responsibility.  There were 50 acres on Scipio Lane 370 
that the county received about ten years ago.  Since then, the county built a recreation center and 371 
government complex on the property.  There were still sufficient grounds upon which a senior center 372 
could be built.  Senior centers are not tied to municipalities in this state; senior centers are tied to the 373 
county or senior citizen agency, as the case may be.  Horry County has one recognized agency under the 374 
federal Older Americans Act:  the Horry County Council on Aging (HCCA). The HCCA operates a small 375 
senior center on 10th Avenue North, which is a collaboration between the county and the town with 376 
respect to ownership of the building and the land.  Revenue is derived from federal Older Americans Act 377 
funds and, within the past ten years, Horry County voters approved a designated tax millage to support 378 
senior citizen programs.  Horry County is one of the few counties that have designated a tax millage to 379 
support senior citizen programs.  Mayor Samples did not believe it was in the town’s business to be 380 
involved directly in senior citizen programs.   381 
 382 
 Ms. Mabry said she worked with, but not for, the HCCA in Georgetown and Williamsburg 383 
counties.  She remembered when the library was on 10th Avenue and the county asked permission to 384 
locate a senior citizens center there.  At that time, the building was adequate.  At that time, the area was 385 
not as built up as it is now, so it was very convenient for the town and for the town’s senior citizens.  Now, 386 
it is outdated; she did not think anyone would argue that.  It is a county responsibility.  As a small 387 
municipality, the town cannot take that over, even if it wanted to.  Ms. Mabry said the expense and 388 
regulations would be prohibitive.  Scipio Lane was the logical place to put a senior center, because of the 389 
recreation, although she had no intention of telling Horry County what it could or could not do with its own 390 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 8 of 15 
 

property.  If the senior center should move, as far as she knows, and she believes she was correct, that 391 
building reverts to town ownership.   392 
 393 
 Mayor Samples said she was correct. 394 
 395 
 Ms. Mabry continued saying that the facility was used by a lease, but at no cost.  She was pro 396 
HCCA; she always has been.  She knew the good work they do; its efforts keep many people out of 397 
nursing homes, and allowing them to live a good, fulfilled life.  Ms. Mabry said this was very hard to say, 398 
but her job was to protect the Town of Surfside Beach, and protect its land.  She could not see that a 399 
really good service would be done for anyone, even if the land could be given away.  Therefore, she said 400 
she would have to be in favor of the senior center moving elsewhere, should they ever want to move. 401 
 402 
 Mr. Stevens understood that the HCCA took care of senior citizens for Horry County.  As he 403 
looked at the crowd he saw a lot of senior citizens.  He knew that the town had senior citizens.  It was 404 
unfortunate that the town did not have the land, but (**) eventually there may be something in this area.  405 
He would still support the senior citizens, because that was the backbone of the town.  Mr. Stevens said 406 
he reckoned they were at a standstill at this point. 407 
 408 
 Ms. Dodge thought the idea of helping seniors was a good one.  She was a senior citizen herself, 409 
and if she needed help, she would want somebody to be there working for her.  But, this was a county 410 
project.  It was not something the town should interfere with, she did not think.  That was her opinion.   411 
 412 
 Mr. Smith moved to reconvene regular session.  Ms. Dodge seconded.  All voted in favor.  413 
MOTION CARRIED. 414 
 415 
 Ms. Kohlmann moved to take the town administrator’s recommendation to take no action since 416 
the entire Huckabee Complex had a use restriction in perpetuity, and the town does not have money 417 
budgeted for a land conversation.  Mr. Smith seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  418 
 419 
 C.  Budget Workshop Location (April 30 & May 1, 2014), Administrator Fellner. 420 
 421 
 Ms. Fellner said that Town Council agreed on the budget retreat dates of April 30th and May 1st, 422 
2014, at the last meeting, but not on the venue.  She was directed to bring this back when all 423 
councilmembers were present.  These dates were chosen so that all seated councilmembers and 424 
councilmembers-elect could attend the budget retreat.  Council also requested that first reading of the 425 
budget be moved to May 27, 2014.  Estimated cost to hold the budget meeting at the Wampee 426 
Conference Center in Pinopolis, South Carolina, was about $3,200.  427 
 428 
 Mr. Johnson personally believed based on the last meeting that this council or any council would 429 
be better off having budget retreats offsite and in Pinopolis.  Offsite meetings create more cohesiveness 430 
among the councilmembers.  There are some expenses involved, but he thought in the long run that it 431 
was worth it.  Council was not distracted when they were at Pinopolis, and worked together.  Every year 432 
that he attended a retreat at Pinopolis, the council got things done.  The argument that going out of town 433 
did not give the public the opportunity to attend the budget retreat was off the table, because it was held 434 
here last year, and there were very, very, very few people who showed up.  There were even 435 
councilmembers that did not show up.  He supported going to Pinopolis, if for no other reason, as an 436 
investment for this council and for the town. 437 
 438 
 Ms. Kohlmann respectfully disagreed, and said when the meeting was held in Pinopolis she and 439 
Ms. Mabry, both of whom were not on council at that time, attended the meeting in Pinopolis as town 440 
residents.  It was a long drive, and from what she saw, there were a lot of breaks, and a long lunch.  She 441 
felt as a citizen that she was putting them out, because they sat there when they went to eat, and it was 442 
jolly and all that kind of stuff.  She said maybe they did get a lot of work done, she did not know.  She 443 
personally did not want to go there.  If one person in town attends the budget meeting, that one person 444 
needs to be able to come.  What if they cannot drive to Pinopolis, or what if they do not want to go to 445 
Pinopolis, but they want to see what the council was doing.  If Town Council cannot focus in town hall, 446 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 9 of 15 
 

then we have a problem.  We should be able to focus wherever we are, and that was the main priority.  447 
She knows there were a lot of workshops; more than any other council probably ever did on the budget.  448 
Part of that might be inexperience, she did not know, but she thought that the council worked really hard 449 
and every single councilmember worked hard.  Some people missed some of the budget, but some 450 
people missed regular meetings.  Some people missed special meetings.  She did not think it could just 451 
be said in that frame.  She personally would not want to go to Pinopolis, and she would like to know the 452 
administrator’s feelings and what she thinks is best for the town, and the council.  If it was about staff, 453 
assign a time for them to attend and do not make them sit here for two or three days.  If there were 454 
questions, a list could be made and staff could be called.  Ms. Kohlmann said she had been told a million 455 
times we are a small two square mile town; two minute response for the police.  She thought staff could 456 
get here pretty quickly to answer council’s questions.  Her belief was that the town does not have any 457 
money; spending over $3,000 in her opinion was a waste. 458 
 459 
 Ms. Dodge heartily agreed with Ms. Kohlmann.  She said it was very relaxing and it was a good 460 
experience being out of town, but they owe it to the citizens of this town to do business in their presence 461 
so they know what was going on.  She thought it would be only right that council do so, the budget in 462 
particular, in their presence.   463 
 464 
 Mr. Stevens said Ms. Fellner had given council the fee schedule for Wampee, and Wampee was 465 
a short drive down Highway 31; the cost for Pinopolis were not given.   466 
 467 
 Mayor Samples said that Wampee was located on Highway 31, but the name of the conference 468 
center in Pinopolis was the Wampee Conference Center.              469 
 470 
 Mr. Stevens said what Ms. Fellner was saying was the cost was $3,204.75 to go to Pinopolis.  471 
Ms. Fellner said the cost was $1,764; the other piece of the puzzle was mileage, which she estimated to 472 
be about $1,440.75, so the total cost would be about $3,204.  Mr. Stevens said okay, it would cost $3,205 473 
to go to Pinopolis.  He personally believed that this was a waste of taxpayers’ money when everything 474 
could be done in chambers.  (**)  Town Council can meet right here in chambers, and like Ms. Kohlmann 475 
said, they could schedule staff in when they need to answer questions.  The town would not have to pay 476 
mileage to drive to Pinopolis, South Carolina, so that would save the taxpayers quite a bit of money, and 477 
any person that wanted to come, instead of having to drive all the way to Pinopolis to find out what the 478 
council was talking about, could come right here to talk to council.  Mr. Stevens said he did not know if it 479 
was true, but he heard rumors that they go down there and they have beer and things like that there. 480 
 481 
 Ms. Mabry called point of order.   482 
 483 
 Mr. Stevens said if he went down there and they did that, he would not want to go. 484 
 485 
 Ms. Mabry again called point of order. 486 
 487 
 Mayor Samples said thank you, and recognized Ms. Mabry. 488 
 489 
 Ms. Mabry said she brought this up, and she was the one who said she would never bring it up.  490 
So, evidently there were many things that made her change her mind.  One, never say never, because 491 
you would be the very first one to have to eat your words.  The council held between nine and 12 492 
meetings.  The budget adoption was the most important action this council takes.  There is nothing that it 493 
will do that would top it.  To give the budget the attention it needs, the council needs to be out of town.  494 
True, there was not a quorum the second day.  Forget the times that the staff sat here with nothing to do.  495 
Budget retreat was very intense, as it should be.  Town Council was doing the most important thing it 496 
could do as a councilmember.  Members need to be sitting around a table working as one unit.  Ms. 497 
Mabry said they had been a fractured council since day one.  The mayor had done everything in his 498 
power to bring them together, and have them all work as a unit.  This was one time that the council could 499 
once again try to do that, and do it for the town.  She knew $3,000 sounded like a lot, but in a $9 million 500 
budget, it was not.  Ms. Mabry said what the council did while in Pinopolis might offset that cost.  It was 501 
important that the council go out of town, that council talk to the staff, and spend time with each other, 502 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 10 of 15 
 

and that council gets the work of the town done efficiently.  Ms. Mabry said she was 100-percent ready to 503 
go out of town and do the town’s business as a complete unit.   504 
 505 
 Mr. Smith asked if the $3,000 included the members-elect, if they decided to attend.  Ms. Fellner 506 
said they were included; and the totals were assuming that there were three new members, as well as the 507 
seated councilmembers.  Mr. Smith thought there was a benefit to going to Pinopolis.  He understood that 508 
the work could be done here in town, but when they wanted to focus for eight hours plus, he thought it 509 
was wise to be out of town.  He had to leave a number of other meetings, because he was here, it was 510 
easy to leave.  If he had been in Pinopolis, he would not have left, because it would not have been easy 511 
to leave.  Mr. Smith said when you are in town, if you get a call or have something scheduled, it was so 512 
easy to skip out on part of the meeting.  He thought if they really wanted to focus on the budget, they 513 
should go out of town, so he would recommend going out of town.  Mr. Smith said since the town saved 514 
some money on the Huckabee fence that would probably be about $2,000 that could be applied towards 515 
this, so it probably would not impact the general fund if they spend that money, because there was 516 
savings in places.  Mr. Smith reiterated that he would be in favor of going out of town.         517 
  518 
 Mayor Samples did not feel strongly either way.  The turnout for budget workshops had been 519 
disappointing when they were held in town.  He thought he would support going out of town. 520 
 521 
 Ms. Kohlmann said she asked earlier if the administrator could give her opinion on what was best 522 
for the town, the council, and the people.  Ms. Fellner did not believe she could comment on what was 523 
best for the town.  She did say that from the administrator’s point of view, it was always nice to have your 524 
staff available so if there was an issue, someone could handle it.  For two days, the town’s seconds in 525 
command were literally sitting in meetings.   526 
 527 
 Mayor Samples said this would be the twelfth time he participated in the budget process.  He had 528 
participated in budget meetings in town and out of town.  He thought council should delve into the 529 
substance of the budget on the first day.  He would not have a problem sending everyone except the 530 
administrator and the clerk home.  Then council and the administrator, with proper recording, could 531 
discuss some issues that the town faces.  If anyone in the public wanted to attend, they could come.  532 
Council was making progress, but the last budget adopted was still, for all total spending, a continuation 533 
of six years of spending more than was being received.  Mayor Samples said that had to be fixed; it could 534 
not continue.  Mayor Samples said that he previously called the presentations during some former 535 
administrations amateurish.  He reiterated that staff should be prepared to get to work.  Town Council 536 
attended many meetings and spent days going through the budget; his expectation was it was 537 
unnecessary to cover much of that territory.  He thought council should think more strategically; discuss 538 
planning, and to answer Ms. Kohlmann’s question, ‘what is best for the town,’ Mayor Samples said this 539 
council has that obligation and responsibility to determine what is best for the town.     540 
 541 
 Mr. Johnson moved to hold the budget workshop in Pinopolis in the year 2014.  Mr. Smith 542 
seconded.  Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry, and Councilmembers Johnson and Smith voted 543 
in favor.  Councilmembers Dodge, Kohlmann, and Stevens voted against.  MOTION CARRIED.   544 
 545 
 D.  6th Avenue South Pond, Director Adair. 546 
 547 
 Mr. Adair presented the consideration paper, which is on file.  He said the approved land 548 
disturbance permit was received from DHEC (Department of Health and Environmental Control) so staff 549 
could proceed with the filling in of the pond at 6th Avenue South should Town Council give him that 550 
direction. 551 
 552 
 Mr. Smith asked Mr. Adair to restate the cost for the project.  Mr. Adair believed the estimate was 553 
around $7,000; no more than $10,000.  Mr. Smith asked if that amount only included pipes and filling in 554 
the pond; not the benches or amenities as shown in the photograph.  Mr. Adair said that was correct.  Mr. 555 
Smith asked if plans were in place to add those amenities.  Mr. Adair said the photograph was for 556 
informational purposes to show councilmembers what could be done; the project is to add pipes, fill in the 557 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 11 of 15 
 

pond and plant grass in the area.  Mr. Smith asked if money was budgeted for the project.  Mr. Adair said 558 
yes, it would be paid for from the stormwater improvement budget.       559 
 560 
 Mr. Stevens asked how much money had been spent on engineering and permitting.  Mr. Adair 561 
did not know the exact amount, but believed it was around $4,000 between the Army Corps of Engineers 562 
wetland determination and impact; the notice of intent, and drainage plans that were submitted to DHEC 563 
for the general permit.  Mr. Stevens asked how much additional cost would be for engineering, materials 564 
and any other costs to complete the project.  Mr. Adair said there would be some additional engineering 565 
costs to insure grading was done correctly.  Materials were priced locally, and he believed the total 566 
additional costs would be about $7,000.  Mr. Adair said they have the fill material; they just had to prepare 567 
the infrastructure.  Mr. Stevens said the monies would not have to come extra out of the budget from out 568 
of stormwater [sic.]  Mr. Adair said there was $410,000 budgeted; the small amount taken out of there 569 
would not affect the larger projects that were scheduled.  Mr. Stevens noticed that a picture was given to 570 
the council, and asked if the plan included putting in gazeboes or things like that.  Mr. Adair said no, that 571 
was just a graphic that he created to show what might be done.  Mr. Stevens said so he was just going to 572 
cover it in sod.  Mr. Adair said a grassed area would be created; no fixtures would be installed at this 573 
time.   574 
 575 
 Ms. Kohlmann thanked Mr. Adair for meeting with councilmembers individually to tour the area 576 
and explain the project in detail so they would understand everything.   577 
 578 
 Mr. Stevens asked if right now the pond met all state, DHEC, Army Corps of Engineers, and 579 
OCRM (South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Services – Department of Ocean and 580 
Coastal Resource Management).  Mr. Adair said yes.  OCRM’s consistency section has also approved it.  581 
Mr. Stevens asked if all approvals were in hand.  Mr. Adair said yes.   582 
 583 
 Mayor Samples asked how long the approvals were good, in the event the project was deferred.  584 
Mr. Adair said approvals were good at least a year.   585 
 586 
 Mr. Smith moved to proceed with filling in the 6th Avenue South pond.  Ms. Dodge seconded.  All 587 
voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 588 
 589 
 E.  Keep Surfside Beach Beautiful (KSBB) Recommendation–Award plaque to Horry 590 
Georgetown Technical College (HGTC) regarding signage design and branding, Administrator 591 
Fellner. 592 
 593 
 The KSBB voted to award a plaque to HGTC for the efforts put forth by both the staff and 594 
students with regard to the signage and branding campaign.  The cost was minimal, about $50, if council 595 
wished to proceed.  Since the students had already graduated and the town wished to perpetuate 596 
cooperative efforts between HGTC and the town, it might be of greater service to present the plaque to 597 
HGTC and ask Professor Bunal to accept it on its behalf.      598 
 599 
 Mayor Samples and Mr. Johnson agreed. 600 
 601 
 Mr. Smith also agreed, and asked how many students participated in the project.  Ms. Fellner said 602 
there were a lot of them.   603 
 604 
 Mayor Samples said probably 30 or 40 students.   605 
 606 
 Ms. Kohlmann said there were four different teams with five members, there were directors, and 607 
players.  She suggested a certificate for each student. 608 
 609 
 Mr. Smith said Ms. Kohlmann was thinking like him; he also thought each student needed to be 610 
recognized. 611 
 612 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 12 of 15 
 

 Ms. Kohlmann said to give the plaque to HGTC, because the students had already graduated.  613 
She wondered if a certificate might be more appreciated by the students.  Ms. Fellner said it would be 614 
very difficult to find the students once they graduated.  Ms. Kohlmann thought the students did a really 615 
great job and she thought that would be a very little effort on the town’s behalf to recognize them.   616 
 617 
 Mayor Samples agreed, and said in his opinion, it was important to maintain and grow the 618 
partnership between the town and the local technical college, which was a free asset.   619 
 620 
 Ms. Kohlmann said it was enjoyable. 621 
 622 
 Mayor Samples said it was enjoyable, and some of the 50th Anniversary products and signage 623 
will, hopefully, be purchased during the next year will be the results of their efforts, which did not cost the 624 
town anything.   625 
 626 
 Mr. Johnson suggested presenting a plaque in perpetuity, and in the future awarding certificates 627 
to the students that participate.   628 
 629 
 Mayor Samples agreed and suggested certificates be given at an earlier date.   630 
 631 
 Mr. Smith asked if an attempt would be made to deliver certificates to students that participated 632 
this year.  Ms. Fellner would contact Professor Bunal to see if that was practical.  Mr. Smith suggested 633 
that a plaque be given to Professor Bunal for the college, and certificates be given to him and let him 634 
distribute them.  Ms. Fellner was willing to do so.  Mr. Smith thought if certificates were given, it should 635 
start with this year’s students.   636 
 637 
 Mayor Samples asked if there were objections to Mr. Smith’s suggestion.  There were no 638 
objections.   639 
 640 
 Ms. Dodge displayed a drawing of a welcome sign and said it was beautiful.  She thought it might 641 
be considered for a welcome sign.   642 
 643 
 Mayor Samples suggested Ms. Dodge talk with the administrator and send the drawing to the 644 
appropriate committee. 645 
 646 
 Ms. Fellner said since the desire was to make this an on-going cooperative effort, she thought a 647 
more expensive plaque might be purchased that would give them the ability to have this year’s class and 648 
initiative, and then add future class names and annual initiatives.  There were no objections. 649 
 650 
 Mr. Smith moved to give a plaque to Horry Georgetown Technical College and certificates to 651 
students regarding their work on the design and branding project.  Ms. Kohlmann seconded.  All voted in 652 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  653 
 654 
 F.  Committee Appointment (may be deferred until after executive session) – Business 655 
Committee – 1 vacancy. 656 
 657 
 Mayor Samples said there were no nominations to present and moved to discussion. 658 
 659 
 8.  DISCUSSION

  662 

 – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town 660 
Council. 661 

 Mr. Stevens recognized Steve and Dianna Taylor for winning yard of the month.  (Applause.) 663 
 664 
 9.  
 666 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – General Comments (5 minutes.) 665 

 “Wanda Burgess, 311 15th South.  This, (**) I’m a dog person.  I have a little dog, and me and 667 
Jackson walk on Ocean Boulevard every other day.  I’m anal retentive and I’ll tell anybody that.  I carry 668 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 13 of 15 
 

two bags; 99-percent of the people on Ocean Boulevard don’t have even one.  Could we not put little 669 
doggie bags in the disposal areas there at the beach accesses along Ocean Boulevard, particularly for 670 
those people that walk a horse.  (Laughter.)  You know, I, I know the little ones, you know, need to be 671 
picked up, too, but I mean the gigantic ones, it would really be nice to have something available so maybe 672 
they could take the hint.  Hey, maybe I need to pick up after my dog, if the town is providing bags for me 673 
to do so.  Cause I don’t know of anyone that likes to step in a pile of dog crap.  Other thing, I’m assuming 674 
maybe parks and recreation, (**) sanitation.  I don’t know who, who handles it, but I know at 15th South 675 
access there is a little smoking disposal thing, a little PVC (Poly Vinyl Chloride) thing.  I’ve never seen it 676 
emptied, and being a smoker, I notice that.  But, I don’t take my cigarettes to the beach, so I’m not one of 677 
the 1,500 butts that you picked up, but that’s just, you know, something I think that that needs to be 678 
addressed, cause, you know, you’re overflowing, falling all on the beach access, and maybe people 679 
would pick up after their dogs, if there was [sic] bags, okay.  Tourist season’s over, think about Tybee 680 
Island.”   681 
 682 
 “Tom Dodge, 15th Avenue North.  I’m glad that this fractured council voted themselves [sic] a free 683 
vacation.  I personally came to three or four of the budget meetings, along with a couple other 684 
townspeople.  In my humble opinion, if one person comes to a meeting of this town, it’s a good thing, so 685 
now I’m not gonna drive all the way to Pinopolis, so you won’t have to worry about me questioning you 686 
next year.  I think it’s a slap in the face of the townspeople to give yourselves [sic] a free vacation at my 687 
expense.  I, therefore, humbly request that my tax bill be cancelled.  Thank you.”         688 
 689 
 “Ralph Magliette, Harbor Lights Drive.  First, I’d like to thank you for trying to do what you could 690 
for the Huckabee, for the senior center, and since that’s not gonna work, we need to move forward, and I 691 
think the idea was brought forward a while back to use county land and go up to, to the complex up on 692 
Scipio Lane is a very good idea for a senior center.  I think the most important thing is that we be 693 
advocates for seniors and that we push for a new senior center, because in my humble opinion, without 694 
that push and passion to get it done, it’s not gonna get done, and that’s okay, because we’re here to do 695 
the long haul, and thank you for your support, and again, it’s important to remember that, you know, the 696 
senior citizens, they have a right to age in place, and to live an independent life for as long as possible, 697 
and to have programs and have access to those programs and recreational opportunities that can be 698 
afforded to them.  Anything that this council can do to push that agenda forward is well received.  So, I 699 
thank you for that.  I don’t have any hard feelings for that.  I’m not that kind of person.  I’m a Jesus 700 
person, and as I always say, I am second and God is first.  The other thing that I want to do and it’s a 701 
good thing, and I wanted to thank everyone; I sent everyone a note, but I’d just like to read it out loud to 702 
give credit and thanks, and I’ll read it directly, and it says:  I would like to thank the Town Council, 703 
Surfside Beach staff, police and fire departments for supporting South Strand Helping Hand during their 704 
August canned food collection.  We collected 1,250 pounds of food.  Thanks to the police who donated 705 
their time to help South Strand Helping Hand move the entire contents of our facility into pods so we 706 
could install new floors.  Thanks to the fire department who donated their time to help South Strand 707 
Helping Hand move back into our facility after the new floors were installed.  We could have not [sic] 708 
completed this process without their help.  Brad Thompson, president of South Strand Helping Hand is 709 
sending out thank you notes to acknowledge your help and assistance to South Strand Helping Hand.  710 
What a wonderful town.  What a wonderful place for people who volunteer their times and talents to help 711 
people, especially people in need.  So, I thank you again, and God bless you.”   712 
 713 
 “Good evening, Mayor and Town Council, citizens.  I’m here to talk about the fence that was put 714 
up at Huckabee park.  When this fence was put up; I live right behind it.  There’s a drainage ditch, which 715 
runs behind my house.  Horry County has told me the ditch belongs to Surfside.  When they put the fence 716 
up, they pushed the dirt from the park side over to our side in the ditch.  Now, we have a drainage 717 
problem.  I have 8-inches of standing water behind my house, which creates mosquito nests.  It’s 718 
harboring snakes, now, harvesting [sic] snakes, which we never had to do before.  Surfside does not 719 
maintain the ditch at all.  They’ve been there one time this past summer and cut the grass.  I would like to 720 
know what’s gonna be done about it.  We have ten homes back there affected by this ditch, now, because 721 
of this fence.”   722 
 723 
 Ms. Kohlmann asked if the speaker could state his name and address for the record, please. 724 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 14 of 15 
 

 725 
 “My name is Tom Steers.  I live at 156 Summer Worth Circle on the other side of 17, in the 726 
Mallard Landing Village.” 727 
 728 
 Ms. Kohlmann thanked Mr. Steers, explaining the information was needed for the record. 729 
 730 
 Mr. Steers:  “Okay, that’s fine.” 731 
 732 
 Mayor Samples asked Mr. Steers to meet with the administrator. 733 
 734 
 Mr. Steers:  “Okay, well, we’ve sent three, us and two personal emails to Mr. Adair, which were 735 
never answered.  The homeowners association has sent a letter, which was never answered.  You came 736 
out and looked at it yourself and I thank you for that.” 737 
 738 
 Mayor Samples said he did go out, and reiterated that he needed to speak with the administrator, 739 
and introduced Ms. Fellner, who would schedule a meeting time to discuss the details.  740 
 741 
 Mr. Steers:  “Thank you, very much.” 742 
 743 
 10.  
 745 

COUNCIL COMMENTS. 744 

 Ms. Kohlmann:  “When Ralph was talking about South Strand Helping Hand, you left yourself and 746 
your wife off that list of people that were very, very important, and that were moving in and out that day, 747 
and also, Ron Saunders.  So, don’t sell, sell yourself short, because you were moving all that heavy stuff.  748 
I (**), I also just wanted to comment about the response from the police department and the fire 749 
department.  When it came to just picking up the phone and asking can anybody help, they came on their 750 
own time.  They didn’t come on [sic] when they were working.  They came on their day off, and they were 751 
doing heavy labor.  So, I commend you, your wife, for all that you did at Helping Hand, but also to the 752 
police and the fire, the fire department and staff from the Town of Surfside Beach.  They do a really, really 753 
good job, and they also do it on their day off as well.  Thank you.” 754 
 755 
 Mr. Stevens:  “Mr. Magliette, don’t give up on your dreams.  It’s gonna happen, eventually.  756 
Senior citizens are in Surfside, and I’m sure they’re gonna appreciate all the work you’ve been doing.  Mr. 757 
Dodge, I reckon I’m gonna have a vacation at your expense.  Sorry.  To all the rest of the folks out there, I 758 
thank you for coming in.  Appreciate all the volunteers that work for this town, and the committees, and 759 
you’re doing a great job.  Keep on doing it, and don’t forget to come to the family festival on October 5th.  I 760 
believe it’s Saturday.  I was there last year as a vendor and it was great.  Thank you.” 761 
   762 
 Ms. Mabry:  “Just want to thank everybody for coming out, and to address the not having any 763 
bags on the Ocean Boulevard.  Mr. Adair is doing a comprehensive plan for plantings, and he has 764 
already, or let me just rephrase that, when I was talking to him about it, that was something that was 765 
definitely discussed;  was being able to incorporate that with not only getting the bags, but getting the 766 
trash cans to put the bags in.  So, we had talked about it.  He had brought that up, and, and actually has 767 
all kinds of pictures and it really looked nice and they kind of blend in really nice, and I think it’s gonna be 768 
a great thing to have those amenities, because nobody wants to see a nasty Ocean Boulevard or a 769 
beach.  That’s just because I have a dog, too.” 770 
 771 
 Mr. Smith:  “Thank you.  I support having the doggie bags available on Ocean Boulevard, but I’m 772 
not sure we want the bag stand to blend in too much, because they won’t see it.  Maybe we should paint 773 
it red, so it’s very, very visible, (laughter) cause what we want to do is for them to use it, and I find that, 774 
because I walk Ocean Boulevard a lot, I find that during the winter months there is a lot more mess, 775 
because of people who come down here for the a, few months at a time, and bring their dogs and, and 776 
forget that they’re supposed to clean up.  The summer guys don’t seem to do as much, because they’re 777 
so concerned about being on the beach they don’t have enough time to walk their dogs.  But, anyhow, 778 
let’s don’t let it blend in so that they can’t see it.” 779 
 780 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
September 24, 2013 

Page 15 of 15 
 

 Ms. Dodge:  “I want to commend Mr. and Mrs. Magliette for their tireless work for this town, and 781 
their dedication to the senior citizens of this town.  I know there are other people who also do this, but I 782 
have seen these two in action, and nothing stops them when they set a goal.  They will get it done.  I am 783 
so proud to have them as neighbors in this town.” 784 
 785 
 Mr. Johnson:  “Thank you folks for coming out.  It’s been a pretty good meeting.  I just want to 786 
mention South Strand Helping Hand.  They are, are a great organization, and one thing that I didn’t know 787 
until a couple of years ago, but they do take donations.  You know, you have a lot of places around here 788 
that, that take donations and they may be 501 or 503 (C) organizations, but, but I would recommend 789 
donating to South Strand Helping Hand.  You know, keep it local.  They do a lot for this community and 790 
the area, and you know, they need our help, and again, thanks for coming out, and God bless you.  791 
Thank you.” 792 
 793 
 Mayor Samples:  “I want to remind everybody again we do have a workshop that’s a Thursday, 794 
October 3rd, Thursday at 5:30 to discuss the draft comprehensive plan.  Is that plan on the website?”  Ms. 795 
Fellner said yes, it was.  Mayor Samples:  “So, the draft plan is on the surfsidebeach.org website.  We 796 
want your input, and I’ll see you there.    797 
 798 
 11.  
 800 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 799 

 Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss the appointment of a person to a public body 801 
(See Business Item 7.F.) 802 
    803 
 Executive session was not held, because there were no nominations to the business committee. 804 
  805 
 12.  ADJOURNMENT.
 807 

   806 

 Mr. Smith moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:15 p.m.  Ms. Dodge seconded.  All voted in favor.  808 
MOTION CARRIED. 809 
 810 
      Prepared and submitted by, 811 
 812 
      _____________________________________________  813 
      Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 814 
 815 
Approved:  October 8, 2013 816 
 817 
 818 

____________________________________ 819 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 820 

         821 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 822 
Mary Beth Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore    Ann Dodge, Town Council    823 
 824 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 825 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 826 
 827 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 828 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council 829 
 830 
Clerk’s Note:  This document constitutes minutes of the meeting that was audio taped.  These are detailed minutes 831 
documenting each member’s comments.  Appointments to hear audio tapes may be scheduled with the town clerk.  832 
In accordance with FOIA, meeting notice and the agenda were distributed to local media and interested parties. The 833 
agenda was posted on the town website, the entry door at Town Council Chambers, and in the Town Hall reception 834 
area.  Meeting notice was also posted on the Town marquee.  Public Comments and Town Council Comments are 835 
transcribed as close to verbatim as possible.  When (**) is used a section of the tape is inaudible.      836 



 

      
 

   Fire Prevention Week - October 6 – 12, 2013 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside Beach is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those 
living in and visiting our town; and 
 
 WHEREAS, fire is a serious public safety concern both locally and nationally, and homes are the 
locations where people are at greatest risk from fire; home fires killed more than 2,500 people in the United 
States in 2011, according to the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), and fire departments in the 
United States responded to 370,000 home fires;  
 
 WHEREAS, cooking is the leading cause of home fires in the United States where fire departments 
responded to more than 156,000  annually between 2007 and 2011; two of every five home fires start in the 
kitchen; unattended equipment was a factor in one-third of the reported cooking fires; and 
 
 WHEREAS, 57-percent of reported non-fatal home cooking fire injuries occurred when the victims tried to 
fight the fire themselves, and  children under the age of five years face a higher risk of non-fire burns 
associated with cooking than being burned in a cooking fire; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Surfside Beach residents should stay in the kitchen when frying food on the stovetop, keep 
a three-foot kid-free zone around cooking areas and keep anything that can catch fire away from stove tops; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, residents who have planned and practiced a home fire escape plan are more prepared and 
will therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and 
 
 WHEREAS, working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in reported home fires in half; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside Beach first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence of 
home fires and home fire injuries through prevention and protection education, and town residents are 
responsive to public education measures and are able to take personal steps to increase their safety from fire, 
especially in their homes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2013 Fire Prevention Week theme, "Prevent Kitchen Fires!" effectively serves to remind 
us to stay alert and use caution when cooking to reduce the risk of kitchen fires. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, I, Douglas F. Samples, Mayor of the Town of Surfside Beach, do hereby proclaim 
October 6th through 12th, 2013 as Fire Prevention Week in the town, and I urge all residents to check 
their kitchens for fire hazards and to implement safe cooking practices during Fire Prevention Week 2013 and 
throughout the year, and to support the many public safety activities and efforts of Town of Surfside Beach Fire 
Department and other emergency services. 
 
 BE IT SO PROCLAIMED this 8th day of October 2013. 

 
__s/_________________________________________ 

The Hon. Douglas F. Samples 
Mayor, Town of Surfside Beach 

        (SEAL)            
                 Attest: __s/_____________________________________ 
        Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 





















































































































1 
 

 

 
 

RODNEY KEZIAH DOUGLAS F. SAMPLES 
     Chief of Police Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 

SURFSIDE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
811 Pine Drive 

Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
 

Monthly Activity Report 
SEP 2013 

(1-SEP–30-SEP 13) 
Prepared by Rodney Keziah 

 

 
 

INTRODUCTION: 
 

September 2013 statistics show a 35% decrease in calls for service from last month 
(1318 to 972). This decrease is expected, as we are going into our shoulder season after 
Labor Day. This is the time that we use to complete all of our required training and updates 
for certification purposes. Arrest and Citation data between September 2012 and 
September 2013 showed a very negligible 1% increase (251 to 254).  
 

As always, these numbers will be detailed for you in the Workload / Performance Metrics 
section of the report. 

 
PERSONNEL ACTIONS: 

 
We accepted a letter of resignation from PTL Jason Newton effective September 21st. 

Some of you may know Jason from his position as one of our sworn Beach Patrol Officers 
during the summer. Jason has accepted a position with Chester County Sheriff’s Office, 
which is in his hometown. We wish the best for PTL Newton and his family. 

 
A letter of resignation was also accepted from PTL Bryan Byrd effective September 30th. 

We also wish Bryan and his family the best. 
 
The application period for Police Officer applicants closed on October 4th. We are 

beginning the hiring process, and hope to have officers hired within the month. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



2 
 

HIGH RISK LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES: 
 

SBPD officers used two reportable levels of force during this reporting period 
(standard handcuffing, escort holds, etc. do not require additional reporting beyond 
our Uniform Crime Report – see following table for summary).    

 
SBPD - HIGH RISK LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES (SEP 2013 Reporting Period)

DATE ACTIVITY TYPE OFFENSE OFFICERS ARREST INJURIES PROP. DAMAGE 

1 SEP Use of Force 

Possession 
of Marijuana / 

Resisting 
Arrest 

CPL King / 
PTL Butler 

Yes None No 

This occurred during the arrest of a subject on the beach for possession of illegal narcotics. The suspect resisted arrest and refused to 
cooperate. A drive-stun with the TASER was deployed and he was arrested without further incident or injury. 

5 SEP Use of Force 

Possession 
with intent to 

distribute 
marijuana 

near school. 

CPL 
Ziolkowski / 

PTL 
Ridgeway 

Yes None No 

This use of force resulted in the use of empty hand controls (no secondary weapon used) to handcuff and uncooperative suspect. The use of 
force was minimal, but rose to the level of reporting. No injuries to either party. 

       
 

 
 

TRAINING: 
 

As always, officers maintained their Class 1 Law Enforcement licenses via online 
training provided by the SC Criminal Justice Academy, and continued to receive their 
mandated in- service hours through the SC Criminal Justice Academy online. 

 
Sept 3-5, PTL Lavender attended a court certification class on Standardized Field 

Sobriety Testing. This class was held in North Myrtle Beach (free of charge), and will 
assist him in the detection, arrest, and prosecution of impaired drivers. 

 
September 11-12, Communications Supervisor Small, Sgt. Black, and Cpl. King 

attended a Mid-Level Management class. The class was sponsored by the Criminal 
Justice Academy, and hosted here by SBPD.  

 
September 24-26, Investigator Ridgeway attended the Reid Institute for Interview 

and Interrogation Techniques, held in Charleston SC. 
 
September 27, Sgt. Black attended the Reid Institute class for Advanced Interview 

and Interrogation Techniques held in Charleston SC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

   WORKLOAD / PERFORMANCE METRICS: 
 

As usual, we’ve included our Monthly Activity Report (along with the same period last 
year spreadsheet for comparison purposes).  Also included are the usual supplemental 
reports: the Criminal Investigations log and the USMS Fugitive Task Force report. 

 
Sgt. Bailey’s participation in the US Marshalls Task Force assisted our agency in 

clearing 37 of our outstanding warrants and collecting $11,789.50 in bond and fine 
money. 

 
This month, SBPD officers issued 90 written warnings in lieu of Uniform Traffic Tickets or 

to record vehicles stopped for non-traffic related reasons (these are not reflected in our 
database totals). 
 
 
 
NOTABLE EVENTS / INFORMATION 
 
 On September 6, SBPD issued the attached media release concerning a traffic stop 
made by CPL Ziolkowski that lead to an arrest for drug violations. During the arrest several 
assault weapons; hundreds of rounds of ammunition, and $37,800 in cash were seized. 
 
 On September 7, officers assisted South Strand Helping Hand with their United Way 
Day of Caring. We assisted in clearing out furnishings and equipment for the installation of 
new carpet and floor covering. 
 
  
 

 
 

   
 
  
 
  
                                          
 

 



4 
 

SURFSIDE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

 

Monthly Activity Report 
SEP 2013 

(1 SEP – 30 SEP 13) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

AND 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 
 

































DECISION PAPER FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
        
 
          
 
      
      
                  
 
 

1. Background- 
 
First Reading was held September 24th and the amendment was adopted without change.  
Second reading is presented for Town Council consideration. 
 
After a review of the Sanitation ordinance, an erroneous reference to monthly fees was found in  
Section 7-26. The fees are clearly spelled out in Section 7-12. This reference needs to be 
removed to avoid confusion in the future. 
 
2. Assumptions- None 
 
3. Facts- Duplications such as these are not desirable in local codes. 
 
4. Recommendation- Approve this housekeeping measure, for a cleaner ordinance. 

 

Sec. 7-26. - Collection procedures—Residential. 

Garbage and household trash accumulated at residences shall be collected at curbside 
or at the edge of the vehicular travel-way on a schedule determined by the town administrator 
or his designee. Such collections shall be limited to town-issued mobile containers as defined 
herein and placement to be as follows; all garbage and household trash must be placed in the 
town-issued mobile containers, mobile containers are to be placed as close to the road or 
vehicular travel-way as possible, bags and/or garbage placed adjacent to or outside the mobile 
containers will not be picked up, and mobile containers that are loaded so that the top cannot 
close will not be serviced. Additional mobile containers are available to residents for an 
additional monthly fee of fifteen dollars ($15.00). Recyclable waste, oversized household trash, 
yard trash and tree or shrubbery trimmings shall be collected on a separate schedule 
determined by the administrator, at each resident's curbside, as specified in this article. The 
provisions of this section do not apply to undeveloped property. 

 

Meeting Date:  October 8, 2013    

Prepared by:  John Adair, DPW 

Subject:  Second Reading of Ordinance # 13-0761 to Amend - Chapter 7 Health and  

  Sanitation Article II, Division III, Section 7-26 as submitted to omit stated fees for  

  additional Moby carts 

   



Ordinance No. 13-0761 
First Reading: September 24, 2013    

Second Reading: _______ 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    ) TO AMEND CHAPTER 7; ARTICLE II DIVISION III;      
COUNTY OF HORRY  ) SECTION 7-26 (COLLECTION PROCEDURES - 
     ) RESIDENTIAL) TO ELIMINATE REFERENCE TO FEES 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH ) FOR MONTHLY SERVICE 
  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in 
council duly assembled on September 24th, 2013 desire to amend Section 7-26, of the 
Town Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council has determined that the amendment 
would benefit the town and the properties within the town; and   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Chapter 7, Article II, Division III, Section 7-26 be amended 
to delete reference to monthly Sanitation fees as follows: 
 
Sec. 7-26. - Collection procedures—Residential. 
 
 Garbage and household trash accumulated at residences shall be collected at 
curbside or at the edge of the vehicular travel-way on a schedule determined by the 
town administrator or his designee. Such collections shall be limited to town-issued 
mobile containers as defined herein and placement to be as follows; all garbage and 
household trash must be placed in the town-issued mobile containers, mobile 
containers are to be placed as close to the road or vehicular travel-way as possible, 
bags and/or garbage placed adjacent to or outside the mobile containers will not be 
picked up, and mobile containers that are loaded so that the top cannot close will not be 
serviced. Additional mobile containers are available to residents for an additional 
monthly fee. Recyclable waste, oversized household trash, yard trash and tree or 
shrubbery trimmings shall be collected on a separate schedule determined by the 
administrator, at each resident's curbside, as specified in this article. The provisions of 
this section do not apply to undeveloped property. 
                                                                                                                                                                                      
 All other portions of Chapter 7 are unchanged and shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this 
ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held 
invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this article, which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of 
this article are declared to be severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the section hereof 
shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, 
construction, interpretation or effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 



Ordinance No. 13-0761 
First Reading: September 24, 2013    

Second Reading: _______ 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

immediately upon approval at second reading by the Town Council of the Town of 
Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town 
of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this ____ 
day of ____________. 
 

____________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mary Beth Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore   Ann Dodge, Town Council    
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council 
      
 
        

Attest: 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Basis:  Section 5-18 of the Town Code of Ordinances incorrectly states:  The municipal 
election commission shall appoint not later than fifteen (15) days before each general or 
special election three (3) managers of election for each five hundred (500) electors, or 
portion thereof, registered to vote at the polling place; and 
 
South Carolina Code 7-13-72 states:  For all other primary, special, or municipal 
elections, the authority charged by law with conducting the primary, special, or 
municipal elections must appoint three managers of election for the first five hundred 
electors registered to vote in each precinct in the county, municipality, or other election 
district and one additional manager for each five hundred electors registered to vote in 
the precinct above the first five hundred electors. 
  
Precinct # # Electors # Required under Current  #Required under 
     Town Code                              State Code  
 
      #1                 2,077                        15                                 6 
      #2                    924                          6                                              4 
      #4                      12                          3                                              0 
 
Historically, the number of poll workers has been the number required under State 
Code, which supersedes Town Code.  Staff respectfully request approval of the 
amendment so that the Town Code will correctly reflect the number of poll workers for 
the precincts and account for Precinct #4. 
 
Attorney Eric Budds of the Municipal Association recommends that this amendment be 
sent to the Department of Justice for approval, even though recent legislation repealed 
the requirement.  As of this date, Mr. Budds said that no written confirmation was 
received of the repeal.  
 
Action Options:  
  
 1.  Approve ordinance as submitted. 
 2.  Approve ordinance with other changes. 
 3.  Deny ordinance. 

Consideration Paper 
 
Meeting Date: October 8, 2013      
Agenda Item:   7.B.i. #13-0763 Amend §5-18 Appointment of Poll Workers 
Presented By: Administrator Fellner 
Topic:   Change Town Code to stipulate that three poll workers are required for the 
   first 500 electors, and one additional manager for each additional 500 
   electors registered to vote in the precinct above the first five hundred 
   electors. 
 



Ordinance No. 13-0763 
First Reading:  10/08/2013   
Second Reading: _______ 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH 
    )  
COUNTY OF HORRY  )  TO AMEND SECTION 5-18 APPOINTMENT OF MANAGERS  
    )   
TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH )  OF ELECTION TO COMPLY WITH STATE CODE §7-13-72 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Surfside Beach, in 
council duly assembled desire to amend Section 5-18 Appointment of managers of 
elections to correctly stipulate the number of managers required in the polling precincts; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 5-18 of the Town Code of Ordinances states 
 

The municipal election commission shall appoint not later than fifteen (15) 
days before each general or special election three (3) managers of 
election for each five hundred (500) electors, or portion thereof, registered 
to vote at the polling place; and 

 
 WHEREAS, South Carolina Code 7-13-72 states 
 

For all other primary, special, or municipal elections, the authority charged 
by law with conducting the primary, special, or municipal elections must 
appoint three managers of election for the first five hundred electors 
registered to vote in each precinct in the county, municipality, or other 
election district and one additional manager for each five hundred electors 
registered to vote in the precinct above the first five hundred electors. 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, Section 5-18, Appointment of Managers of Elections of the 
Code of Ordinances of the Town of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, is hereby amended 
to state:  
 

For all general, runoff, and special municipal elections, the 
municipal election commission shall appoint for each precinct 
in the town three (3) managers of election for the first five 
hundred (500) electors registered to vote at the town precincts 
and one (1) additional manager for each five hundred electors 
registered to vote in the town precincts above the first five 
hundred electors.  Exception:  for purposes of determining the 
number of poll workers at Precinct #2 (See Town Code §5-59), 
the number of electors in Precinct #4 shall be added to the 
number of electors in Precinct #2. Said poll managers shall 
take an oath of office prior to serving.    

 
 All other portions of Section 5 are unchanged and shall remain in full force and 
effect.  
 



Ordinance No. 13-0763 
First Reading:  10/08/2013   
Second Reading: _______ 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 SEVERABILITY.  If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this 
ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be held 
invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this article, which can be 
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of 
this article are declared to be severable. 
 
 EFFECT OF SECTION HEADINGS.  The headings or titles of the several 
sections hereof shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the 
meaning, construction, interpretation or effect of this ordinance. 
 
 REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
immediately upon approval at second reading by the Town Council of the Town of 
Surfside Beach, South Carolina. 
 
 BE IT ORDERED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town 
of Surfside Beach, South Carolina, in assembly and by the authority thereof, this ___ 
day of _______ 2013. 
 

____________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mary Beth Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore   Ann Dodge, Town Council    
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council 
      
 
 
       Attest: 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 









 

MUNICIPAL ELECTION COMMISSION (MEC) 
  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
  OCTOBER 3, 2013 10:00 a.m. 
  TOWN HALL CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.  Chairman Tuttle called the meeting to order.  Commission Members 
Engelhard, Inman, and Tuttle were in attendance; a quorum was present.  Others present:  Town Clerk 
Herrmann.  
 
 2.  OATH OF OFFICE.  The oath of office was administered to Commissioners Engelhard, Inman, 
and Tuttle, copies of which are on file in the clerk’s office.   
 
 3.  CHAIRMAN ELECTION.  Ms. Inman nominated Ms. Tuttle to serve as chairman.  Ms. 
Engelhard seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 4.  AGENDA APPROVAL,  The agenda was approved by consent. 
  
 5.  BUSINESS 
 
 A.  Review Election Laws.  State and town election code copies were included in the Municipal 
Election Handbook for easy reference by the commissioners.  Highlights of the election laws were: 
 

 §5-18 Appointment of managers of elections, an ordinance was being presented to Town Council 
to amend this section to state that the first 500 electors require 3 managers, plus 1 for each 
additional 500 – THE COMMISSION CONCURRED THAT THE CODE SHOULD BE 
CORRECTED 

 §5-19 Duties of election managers, votes must be counted in public 
 §5-31(3) filing fee for council is $25 – no recommendation to increase 
 §5-31(5) filing open advertisement two weeks prior, runs two consecutive weeks-commission 

concurred to publish in The Myrtle Beach Herald, also advertise on town website, town Facebook 
page, town clerk Facebook page, and to email update subscribers (600 as of today) 

 §5-56 Notice of election – Published – advertise not less than 60 days prior to general election-
commission – same advertising as §5-31(5) 

 §7-5-10(4) mandatory training each year – through Horry County Elections and Registrations, get 
set up and notify commissioners 

 §7-5-440(A), (B), (C), change of address situations; resolutions 
 §7-13-120 Candidates and their relatives shall not be managers or clerks  
 §7-13-325 Candidates may use given name, derivative thereof, or nickname on ballot 
 §7-13-710 Photo ID Required – follow Provisional and Failsafe Voters Sheet, Situation 5 
 §7-13-1420 Poll watchers shall be allowed to remain in the polling place after the polls close and 

may observe the processing of the ballots and the sealing of the containers 
 §7-15-420 Receipt, tabulation, and reporting of absentee ballots.  Horry County Elections and 

Registrations serves as the town’s absentee precinct.  Ballots will be picked up about 5 o’clock on 
election day; handed to the chairman, and then the MEC will present absentee ballots for 
challenges beginning at 7:00 p.m. on election day.   

 
 B.  Count Down & Post Election Important dates & Tasks.  The commissioners reviewed the 
schedule and noted that the Challenged Ballot hearing and Certification of Election date would be April 
10, 2014.   
 
 i.  Seats up for election:  3 Councilmembers.  The clerk said that the terms held by Ms. Dodge, 
Ms. Kohlmann and Mr. Smith were expiring.  Ms. Inman asked why Ms. Kohlmann had a short term.  Ms. 
Herrmann explained that Ms. Kohlmann was elected to fill the unexpired term vacated by Mr. Samples 
when he was elected mayor in 2012.   
 

Debra
Highlight

Debra
Sticky Note
These minutes are not completed, but please see 5.A.  The MEC concurred that the number of electors per precinct should be corrected.

































Town of Surfside Beach Existing

Value Permit Fee Plan Review Fee Total Fee

$4,000.00 30.00$              15.00$                     45.00$              

$35,000.00 185.00$            92.50$                     277.50$            

$60,000.00 300.00$            150.00$                   450.00$            

$125,000.00 535.00$            267.50$                   802.50$            

$200,000.00 760.00$            380.00$                   1,140.00$         

$225,000.00 835.00$            417.50$                   1,252.50$         

$550,000.00 1,760.00$         880.00$                   2,640.00$         

Town of Surfside Beach PROPOSED Difference

Value Permit Fee Plan Review Fee Total Fee

$4,000.00 50.00$              25.00$                     75.00$              30.00$              

$35,000.00 220.00$            110.00$                   330.00$            52.50$              

$60,000.00 340.00$            170.00$                   510.00$            60.00$              

$125,000.00 607.50$            303.75$                   911.25$            108.75$            

$200,000.00 870.00$            435.00$                   1,305.00$         165.00$            

$225,000.00 957.50$            478.75$                   1,436.25$         183.75$            

$550,000.00 2,070.00$         1,035.00$                3,105.00$         465.00$            

City of Myrtle Beach Permit Fee Plan Review Fee Total Fee

Value

$4,000.00 50.00$              25.00$                     75.00$              

$35,000.00 222.50$            111.25$                   333.75$            

$60,000.00 341.25$            170.66$                   511.91$            

$125,000.00 $650.00 325.00$                   $975.00

$200,000.00 994.00$            497.00$                   1,491.00$         

$225,000.00 1,106.50$         553.25$                   1,659.75$         

$550,000.00 2,519.00$         1,259.50$                3,778.50$         

Horry County Permit Fee Plan Review Fee Total Fee

Value

$4,000.00 64.00$              32.00$                     96.00$              

$35,000.00 281.00$            140.50$                   421.50$            

$60,000.00 384.00$            192.00$                   576.00$            

$125,000.00 699.00$            349.50$                   1,048.50$         

$200,000.00 1,074.00$         537.00$                   1,611.00$         

$225,000.00 1,199.00$         599.50$                   1,798.50$         

$550,000.00 2,374.00$         1,187.00$                3,561.00$         







Debra
Black Out Box



Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box



Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box



Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box

Debra
Black Out Box



Dedicated people providing quality and responsive service to our community. 
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575-6034  www.surfsidebeach.org 
Telephone 843.913.6111  Facsimile 843.238.5432  Email town@surfsidebeach.org  

 

 
 

  Town of Surfside Beach 
 

Budget Calendar FY 2014-2015 
(Amended) 

 
Date   Task 
11/13/2013 Budget handouts to directors 
 
12/16/2013 All budget pages, including detail, due back to finance 
 
02/04/2014 Diana reviews with Micki, also decides on slides for inclusion 
 
02/17/2014 - Directors review with Micki and Diana 
02/21/2014  
  

   17-Feb Police 
   18-Feb Fire 
   19-Feb Public Works 
   20-Feb Events/PBZ/Admin 
   21-Feb Review of any directed changes (detail and budget) 
 
03/17/2014- Final Review (Administrator/Director Finance/Department Directors) 
03/21/2014 
 
03/25/2014 Diana gives final financial data to Micki for slides 
 
03/26/2014- Micki prepares all charts/graphs and graphic depictions 
04/11/2014 
 
04/09/2014- Assemble budget books 
04/18/2014 
 
04/29/2014 Arrive at Wampee Conference Center, Pinopolis, SC – Budget Workshop 
04/30/2014 Budget Workshop   
05/01/2014 Budget Workshop  
 
05/27/2014 First Reading at regular meeting 
 
06/10/2014 Public Hearing and second reading 

Mayor 
Douglas F. Samples 
 

Administrator 
Micki Fellner 
 

Town Clerk 
Debra E. Herrmann, CMC 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Mary M. Mabry 

 
Town Council 

Ann Dodge 
Mark L. Johnson 

Elizabeth A. Kohlmann 
Roderick E. Smith 

Randle M. Stevens 

http://www.surfsidebeach.org/�
mailto:town@surfsidebeach.org�


 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH      
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
Web:  www.surfsidebeach.org 
 (843) 913-6111     (843) 238-5432 
 

 

TOWN COUNCIL BUDGET MEETING 
Wampee Conference Center, Pinopolis, SC  

Tuesday - THURSDAY, APRIL 29, 2014 – May 1, 2014 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
Tuesday, April 29, 2014 
6:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. Dinner 
7:00 p.m. – 7:30 p.m. FY2014-2015 Budget:  Current Snapshot and Projected Path 
7:30 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. Capital Projects Fund:  Stormwater 
8:00 p.m. – 8:30 p.m. Enterprise Funds:  Sanitation 
8:30 p.m. – 8:45 p.m. Break 
8:45 p.m. – 9:30 p.m. Enterprise Funds:  Pier 
 
Wednesday, April 30, 2014 
8:00 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. Breakfast 
9:00 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. General Fund and Capital Replacements 
10:30 a.m. – 10:45 a.m. Break 
10:45 a.m. – 12:00 noon General Fund and Capital Replacements 
12:00 noon – 1:00 p.m. Lunch 
1:00 p.m. – 2:30 p.m. General Fund and Capital Replacements 
2:30 p.m. – 2:45 p.m. Break 
2:45 p.m. – 4:15 p.m. General Fund and Capital Replacements 
4:15 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. Break 
4:30 p.m. – 5:45 p.m. General Fund and Capital Replacements 
5:45 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. Break 
6:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. Dinner 
7:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. Revenue Funds: Accommodations Tax 
8:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. Revenue Funds: Hospitality Tax 
 
Thursday, May 1, 2014 
8:00 a.m. – 9:00 a.m. Breakfast 
9:00 a.m. – 10:45 a.m. PTO/Personnel Manual/ Council Priorities from the Comprehensive Plan 
10:45 a.m. – 11:00 a.m. Break 
11:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon PTO/Personnel Manual/ Council Priorities from the Comprehensive Plan 
12:00 noon – 1:00 p.m. Lunch 
1:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.     Other Concerns/Items for Follow-up/Questions 
2:00 p.m. – 2:15 p.m. Break 
2:15 p.m. – 3:30 p.m. Executive Session 
 
 


	10082013_tc_agenda_6biii_police.pdf
	SEPT 2013 Monthly Report
	SEPT 2013 Attachments


